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IN THE SUPREME COURT OE THE UNITED STATES

------------------ -x

COUNTY CE ONEIDA, NEW YCFK, ET AL. , :

Petitioners ;

v. : No. 83-1065

ONEIDA INDIAN NATION OE NEW YOEK :

STATE, ETC., ET AL . , ; and t

NEW YOEK :

Petitioner :

v. : No. 85-1240

ONEIDA INDIAN NATION OF NEW YOEK :

STATE, ETC., ET AL.

Washington, D.C.

Monday, Cctober 1, 1984 

The ate v e-en title d matter caire on for oral 

argument before the Supreme Court of the United States 

at 1:01 o'clock p.m.

APPEARANCES:

AILAN van GESTEL, ES0•, Boston, Massachusetts, cn 

behalf of Petitioners.
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PROCEEDINGS
CHIEF JUSTICE BURGER: We will hear arguments 

next ir County cf Cneida v. Oneida Indian Nation arc New 

York State in the related case.

Hr. van Gestel, you may proceed whenever you ■

are ready.

ORAI ARGUMENT OF ALLAN van GESTEL, ESQ.

ON BEHALF OF THE PETITIONERS

MR. van GESTEL: Mr. Chief Justice, and may it 

please the Court:

This case is a test case, having been sc 

designated by the plaintiffs, having been so treated by 

the courts below. As is in many cases before this 

Court, the decision will reach far beyond the boundaries 

of this case. In this case in particular, it will reach 

much beyond the boundaries.

The 1974 opinion in this case has already 

spawned a vast number cf- Indian land claims. A number 

of cases are pending throughout eastern states and 

southern states, citing the 1974 jurisdictional opinion 

as if it were an opinion on the merits cf the. issues. 

That case, indeed, has already been cited 162 times 

since 1974.

This case has some history in it, and I 

checked to see how many opinions were rendered by the

4
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Supreme Court cf the United States between 1790 and 

1755, the date on which the transaction in issue 

occurred here, and there were only 16.

Shat is involved here is a purchase of land by 

the State of New York from the Cneida Indian Nation in 

1795. The claim, filed about 175 years later, is that 

the State cf New York failed tc comply with the 

restrictions and limitations contained in the second 

Indian Trade and Intercourse Act, the Irade and 

Intercourse Act of 1793, and the claim is that as a 

result, the Oneida Indians, rather than the Counties of 

Kadison and Cneida and the ethers whe live in the claim 

area, the 100,000 acres involved, presently own that 

land.

Cwn is a word that is important because the 

Oneida Indians are, as this Court has recognized, an 

institution with a degree and element cf severeignty in 

it, so that owning the land by the Oneida Indians is 

quite a bit different than owning it by someone else.

The Trade and Intercourse Acts were first 

passed in 1790 by the very first Congress cf the United 

States. A principal question to be decided in this case 

is what was the intent of that Congress in passing the 

first Trade and Intercourse Acts.

QUESTION: Hr. van Gestel.
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MR. van GESTEL: Yesa, sir.

QUESTION* To get back for a moment to the 

point you adverted tc earlier, this is a case about 

ownership and not about sovereignty as such, I take it 

here.

ME. van GESTEI; No, Your Honor. What I meant 

to suggest was that when ownership is in an Indian tribe 

as opposed tc an individual Indian or another 

individual, you have to deal with the elements of 

sovereignty that are inherent in being an Indian trite. 

You cannot avoid it. Sc this really is a case that 

implicates the sovereignty of the Indian nation. If 

they own the land, they are sovereigns ever it tc at 

least a degree as permitted by the current law.

QUESTION: Wouldn't there have tc be a

reservation embracing the land?

ME. van GESTEI; No, there world net have to 

be a reservation. As I read the cases of this Court, 

simply land owned by an Indian tribe or nation is lard 

that is subject to the sovereign rights and powers of 

that Indian nation. It dees not have tc be a 

reservation created, let's say, by the Congress of the 

United States.

I think then we do then turn to the issue of 

whether the first Congress or the Congress in 1793 which

6
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passed the second Trade and Intercourse Act, intended 

that there would be a private right of action available 

under that statute. And in so doing, we lock to the 

recent work of this Court, starting principally in 1575 

with Cort v. Ash and the cases that have flown 

theref rom.

We have a situation here in which there is a 

statute which is comprehensive. It deals with the 

subject of regulating and managing the affairs with the 

Indian tribes and nations. It draws its power, its 

basis from the commerce clause cf the Constitution of 

the United States.

If we lock at the kind of analysis that this 

Court has suggested is appropriate on the issue of 

whether there is or is not a private right of action, it 

seems tc me the cases cf this Court in recent years 

indicate that no private right of action should be 

determined to exist here.

I would initially hearken tack, we have cited 

in our brief tc- the words of James Madison, who was the 

man whc introduced the 1793 statute. There he said at 

the time, misunderstandings, quarrels and wars with 

Indians had originated from the circumstance cf persons 

having obtained through fraud and other improper means 

possession of lands belonging tc Indians. This

7
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consideration rendered it highly important that this 

whole business should be under the absolute and sole 

direction of public authority.

Turning to the statutory language, which is 

where we should first go to determine whether there is a 

private right of action, you will find that there is no 

mention in the statute whatsoever of creating a private 

right. You will also find, however, that there are 

remedies and provisions provided in the statute that 

deal with instances in which it is violated. It is 

principally a criminal statute. There are provisions 

for criminal fines. There are previsions for jail. And 

there are also provisions that permit the President cf 

the United States to call out the military to move the 

settlers off the land. Eut there is nc reference tc a 

private right of action by an Indian tribe.

This should not be surprising because Indian 

tribes were not admitted into the courts. They were not 

expected tc have any right to go to court in 1793. 

Indeed, it wasn’t until the twentieth century when 

Indian tribes first began tc be able tc come into the 

courts. Prior tc that time there were a few special 

legislative acts allowing Indian tribes access to the 

Court, but certainly in 1793 they were not in the 

courts .
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QUESTION; Mr. van Gestel, this is not an

argument on the merits, I take it, as tc whether if they 

could get into — if the tribe could get into court they 

could properly assert this as an affirmative claim cr as 

a d ef a n se .

MR. van GESTEL; This is an argument, Justice 

Rehnguist, on the issue of the intent of the Congress in 

1793, and it seems tc me the intent of the Congress, 

among ether things, in addition tc what its plain 

language said, has to be drawn from Congress' 

understanding cf what was happening at the time.

Cne of the difficulties in these Indian cases 

is tc enable us to put ourselves in the position cf the 

drafters of these statutes at that time, and I think the 

intent of Congress has to be drawn, among ether things, 

from their knowledge of whether Indian tribes were in 

court, were permitted tc be in court.

QUESTION; But is it the intent cf Congress as 

to whether the Indians should have a right of action 

under this particular statute cr the intent cf Congress 

as to how the merits of the statute should be 

interpreted if the tribe were to be able to get into 

court in seme way?

MB. van GESTEL; In my reading of the cases of 

this Court since 1975, it is the intent of Congress as

9
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to whether the Indians should have a right of action 

under the particular statute. It isn't that Congress 

failed to provide remedies, but the remedies it provided 

were remedies for the government to enforce, and it is 

quite understandable why they did that.

Shat this statute was designed to do was to 

regulate what was occurring on the frontier, proballj 

the least regulatable area in American history. You 

have a situation in which there are settlers many, many 

miles from a government which was weak and almost 

nonexistent. To attempt to regulate those people and 

what they were doing other than by having some control 

in the central government was near impossible. Tc 

suggest that the Congress ir 1753 assumed that that 

regulation could be affected by lawsuits between the 

Indians and the settlers on the frontier is to me 

astounding.

QUESTIONi Well, let me ask you this 

question. Supposing that this action had been brought 

in the Supreme Court of Oneida County or in the state 

court system and -- so that there was no question that 

New York would entertain that sort of a cause of action , 

your argument then that you are now making wouldn’t 

address the situation where the action were brought in 

the state court, would it?

10
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MR. van GESTELi If the acticr. were brought in 

state ccurt and it were, as to use your words in the '74 

opinion, a garden variety ejectment action, presumably 

it would be subject to the state law, including the 

defenses that would be available in a state court.

CUESTIGN; Such as the statute of 

limita ticns ?

MR. van GESTEL; Such as the statute of 

limitations, such as adverse possession, the various 

kinds of things that are said at least by the lower 

courts net to apply when we are dealing with a Trade and 

Intercourse Act case in the federal system.

ClESTICNs Well, I think that is an important 

issue in your case, but why would it be resolved any 

differently in state ccurt if the state court in 

deciding the case is subject to the overall limitations 

of federal law.

MR. van GESTEIi Perhaps I misunderstand your 

question. If you are saying in 1970 when this case was 

brought, what would be the result in-the state ccurt in 

New York, I suspect it wouldn’t last more than a week on 

a motion to dismiss on statute of limitations grounds.

QUESTIONi Well, but supposing there is an 

appeal then taken, perhaps in the New York Court of 

Appeals or ultimately to this Court, and the Indian

11
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trite or plaintiff says, leek, this nonintercourse act 

of 179 1 and the supplementa 1 -- or 1793, the 

supplemental act -- say that this land shouldn’t have 

been taken away frcir us the way it was, that we 

shouldn’t have been allowed to deed it away without the 

attendant things specified in the statute, and therefore 

we are entitled to possession. And that’s a federal 

question.

MB. van GESTEL: Ihe federal question, I think 

what you would come to then. Your Honor, is whether a 

right cf action was intended under that statute.

QUESTION: Well, can’t New York give a right

cf acticr under that statute when you are talking about 

a real property question?

ME. van GESTEL: I don’t think New York could 

give a right of action under the 1793 Federal Trade and 

Intercourse Act. New York under its common law could 

provide a common law claim.

QUESTION: And doesn't New York give anyone a

right to come into court and say we are now dispossessed 

of Black Acre; we are entitled by law to Black Acre; 

therefore, give us Black Acre.

QUESTION: By federal law.

MR. van GESTEL: I don’t know whether by 

federal law, Justice White. It seems to me before you

12
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implicate the federal law, you would end up dealing with 

the state law, and I have nc difficulty, and I would net 

argue here with these claims being brought in a State 

Court.

The essence, as I understand it, cf the 1S14 

decision here is that they are inappropriate in a state 

court. Indeed, the Eistrict Ccurt judge, Judge Pert, 

dismissed this action, and the Second Circuit Court cf 

Appeals affirmed that dismissal on the grounds that the 

case should be litigated in the state ccurt system, this 

court first.

QUESTION*; Well, I won’t pursue you further.

My own personal reaction is that the -- your statute of 

limitations and your arguments on the merits are 

probably going to get you -- on the merits of the effect 

of the statute, are going to get you further than the 

private right cf action.

ME. van GESTEL; Well, it seems to me that the 

private right cf action is an important issue, and I 

really don’t mean to back dewn from it in any sense.

QUESTION; Put you've only get limited time.

MR. van GESTEL; I appreciate that, toe, Mr. 

Justice White.

I will pass, at the suggestion of Justice 

Rehnguist, to the statute of limitations issue because

13
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you do have a situation whereby if it is to be 

determined that there is a right of action, and if this 

case can be brought, then you must decide, well, can it 

be Irought 175 years after the cause of action accrued?

In this instance, since we are dealing with a 

federal statute, we must first look to see if there is a 

federal statute of limitations, and there is none.

Under that circumstance, the law seems fairly clear that 

the appropriate thing to do is to borrow the most nearly 

appropriate state statute of limitations. That is 

something that this Court has recognized, indeed as 

recently as June of this year, in the opinion of Burnett 

v. Gratton. In that case the state statute of 

limitations in the State of Maryland was borrowed in 

connection with an action brought under the civil rights 

statutes. It seems equally appropriate here to borrow 

the nearest appropriate New York State statute of 

limitations, and there is no statute of limitations in 

the State of Sew York that is longer than 2C years, so 

that any statute that you borrowed would certainly long 

since have barred this action.

QUESTION; Mr. van Gestel, what tearing, if 

any, dees Section 2415 of Title 28 of the U.S. Cede have 

on this claim asserted by the Indian tribes?

ME. van GESTELs I, Justice C’Ccnnor, I think

14
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it has no bearing whatsoever. That is a statute that 
relates to actions brought by the United States 
government for money damages on behalf of Indians. It 
is not a statute that is designed to deal with claims by 
Indians themselves.

QUESTION; Well, the lawyer for the United 
States doesn’t deal with it.

t

MR. van GESTEL; I realize that. Your Honor, 
and respectfully --

QUESTION; Sc your "whatsoever" is a little 
strong , isn *t it?

MR. van GESTFL; Well, my "whatsoever" comes 
from a reading of the statutory history and the 
discussion by these in Congress at the time of the 
enactment of that statute. I would also point cut that 
it seeiis to me that that is a statute that was created 
only relatively recently under this Court’s decision in 
Stewart v. Keyes tc create and bring tack into beirg a 
cause that had long since abated as a result of the 
statute is something that would violate the Fifth 
A me rdm e rt *

So I really do not think that you can do 
anything with 2415 that relates to this particular 
case.

QUESTION s Except to conclude that if the

15
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United States isn't barred, neither are the Indians.

HR. van GESTEL: Correct, which is a 

conclusion that I think is inappropriate. It is a 

conclusion I think that flews from the theory that the 

Indians must have precisely the same rights as the 

United States. In Indian law in particular that is a 

situation that does not obtain. In many, many 

instances, the Indians do net have the same rights as 

their guardian, as the United States.

In trust law it is a ccmmcn principle that the 

guardian has rights that the ward does not have.

QUESTION: Well, under the 1982 amendments,

the Secretary of the ’Interior, under this federal 

statute of limitations, notifies the Indians of -- the 

Indian tribes of the claims it intends to allow and 

extends the statute another year, presumably to let 

Indian tribes file their own claims.

QUESTION: It-’s another section.

QUESTION: Sc isn’t there some effect here?

MR. van GESTEL; I don't think so, 

respectfully, Your Honor. I think what you have in part 

is yet another effert by the federal government to bring 

an end to these Indian claims, not dissimilar from that 

that occurred when the Indian Claims Commission was 

formed in 1946. It is an effort to ferret out and find

16
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out what claims are availble, to give those Indians who

feel they have a claim an opportunity tc present then tc 

the federal government for action.

But again, it is a money damages statute by 

the federal government, not by Indians.

QUESTIONS What would happen if the United 

States were bringing this action and it was an action 

for guiet title? Would there be any statute of 

limita ticns?

MR. van GESTEL: I would assume that probably 

there would not be a statute of limitations against the 

United States.

QUESTIONS Well, that would -- that’s just 

under the section. That’s just under the statute, isn’t 

it? I mean, isn’t that conclusion compelled by the 

statute or not, no statute of limitations?

MR. van GESTEI; You are talking now about 

2415, Your Honor, or about some other section?

QUESTIONs 2415.

MR. van GESTEI; Under 2415, until the time 

runs out which is contained therein, the United States 

could bring an action.

QUESTION; Yes.

When does the time run out?

MF. van GESTEI; If my memory serves me, it

17
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runs out at the end of this year.

QUESTIONS Uh-huh.

MR. van GESTEIs I think it is December 31, 

198ti, if I recall correctly.

QUESTIONS Dc you think that the case of Ewert 

v. Eluejacket indicates that state statute cf 

limitations don’t apply to Indian claims?

MR. van GESTELs I think Ewert v. Bluejacket 

suggests that state statutes dc net apply, Justice 

C’Ccnncr. I am not suggesting that the state statute 

applies; I am suggesting that the principle in federal 

law that when there is rc federal statute, the federal 

courts borrow the state statute and make it part cf the 

federal law is what applies. I den’t think that was the 

issue at all in Ewert v. Eluejacket..

I would suggest one other thing while I am 

talking about the issue of the statute cf 1 imita tiers, 

and that is the issue of abatement that we have raised.

The Indian Trade and Intercourse Act is ret a 

single statute that has been in existence since 1790 

down tc the present date. Indeed, when you examine it 

you will see that it is a series cf separate, 

specifically limited statutes in the early years, 1790, 

1793, 1796, ’99 and 18C2. It wasn’t until 1834 that it

became a single statute. And with the expiration of

18
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each statute any claims that may have existed, assuming

you find there to he a right of action under it, would 

abate under the law as it applied at that time.

Now, I think another thing that we have tc 

discuss and have to consider in dealing with this kind 

of case, another defense, is a defense cf ratification. 

The law, it would seem, suggests — and have in mind 

that the concern here is that the State of New York, 

when it purchased the land in 1795, did not do it in the 

presence of a federal commissioner. That is the 

deficiency, and the sole deficiency. The State cf New 

York a couple of years later, in 1798, purchased seme 

additional land in the presence of a federal 

commissioner, and nobody has any concern or argues that 

that was in any way inappropriate.

Cases have determined that ratification cf 

thse kinds of transactions can occur after the 

transactions themselves have occurred. That is, if the 

federal government takes certain steps that demonstrate 

that there is a. knowledge cf the transaction and there 

is an implicit ratification, then that is sufficiert to 

satisfy the requirements of the Indian Trade and 

Intercourse Act.

We have set forth in our brief a number cf 

instances in which that ratification applies. In

19
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particular, the next twc purchases by the State cf tiew 

York from the Cneida Indians, in adjacent land, were 

purchases that were made in the presence cf the 

appropriate federal commissioner. They were purchases 

that were appropriate in every respect under the 

statut e .

Those purchases made reference back tc the 

1795 purchase. They described it as a purchase. They 

did the kinds of things that the subsequent cases have 

suggested as sufficient to retroactively ratify.

But in addition tc that, we have had 175 

years, approximately, cf history, of the federal 

government acting with regard to the land in issue here 

as if that land was owned by the people who live on it 

today. The federal government has taken land and built 

post offices, it has built federal highways, it has 

taxed people, it has done everything that you would 

expect it tc dc to'in effect say to these citizens, yes, 

this is your land and you own it.

QUESTION: Kay I ask, Mr. van Gestel, is --

the land here that is in dispute in this case is owned 

by counties. Dc they stand in the shoes of the State of 

New York, or were there intervening transfers of 

own ership?

MB. van GESTEIi Justice Stevens, I do net

20
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believe that they dc. The land, you are correct, the 

land in this particular case that is involved is cured 

by the Counties of Madison and Oneida. They are 

separate entities. Indeed, they have brought --

QUESTION: Did they acquire it directly frcm

the State cf New York?

MR. van GESTEIi They acquired it — they were 

created in cart cut cf this land. They didn't exist at 

the time, but they were created out of it, and their 

title would come from the State cf New York, just as 

would the title of everyone else in that area.

QUESTION: But there has been no intervening

ownership in private hands. So this is really, is it 

more or less the same as if we were dealing with the 

State cf New Ycrk itself?

The reason I ask is because in the Ewert case 

it was the original transferee whc was held not to be 

barred .

MR. van GESTEL; I cannot as I stand here say 

that seme of the county land didn't come frcm somewhere 

else. There may have been a taking to build a county 

highway cr scmethir.g like that. Eut principally the 

land came from the State of New York. However, I don't 

thirk the counties are part of the State cf New Ycrk in 

the sense that the state and the counties are one.

21



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

QUESTION: You think you have the sane, just

as strong a position as if you were a private, innocent 

purchaser through good faith, a third party purchaser?

ME. van GESTEI: Yes, I do, Your Honor, and I 

would remind the Court —

QUESTION: This case is then, on that basis,

the case is quite different from the Ewert case.

MB. van GESTEI: Yes. And I would remind the 

Court that what Judge Port determined and the Second 

Circuit affirmed was that the transaction was invalid, 

the purchase in 1795 was invalid. That's the entire 

1CC,00C acres of land in question.

Now, the private landowners were not parties 

to the litigation and therefore in theory I suppose they 

could raise defenses later on, tut once this case 

deciding that that purchase was invalid has gone all the 

way through the system, their chances to raise defenses 

are greatly diminished.

I think in sum, on the issue of ratification, 

the action by the federal government cannot be ignored, 

and that action really is 175 years of treating these 

people, these counties, as if this were their land.

I would conclude my remarks regarding the 

Indians by suggesting to this Court that when you have a 

moment to reflect on this case and you think for a
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moment about the result of fincing for the Indians in 

this case, it seems to me that you must come to the 

conclusion that this is a political issue. A finding 

for the Indians means in effect that 1CC,0C0 acres of 

land falls under the sovereignty of an Indian tribe. It 

means that it has always been their land. It means that 

175 years of citizens living on that land have been 

trespassers, have been living under a law that had r.c 

place, that is, the laws of the State of Sew York and 

the laws of the United States, and it rreans that the 

people who are there today who have abided by the laws 

of the United States and the laws of the State of Sew 

York are left in the middle.

It is an issue, while it doesn't fall within 

the particular framework of political question, as that 

is a word of art, it is a political issue certainly. I 

don't

QUESTION; Er. van Gestel, on page 4 of the 

state's brief, they mention two judgments, one against 

Madison of $9,060, and against Cneida cf $7,634.

Is that the amount of money involved?

ME. van GESTELs That is the dollar amount, 

yes, Justice Brennan.

The court — it was about 872 acres is the 

land. That land, as you might assume, is principally
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county highways, sc the appraisal of the value of a

county high, something 50 yards wide and a mile and a 

half lcng, results in these very low numbers.

But it isn *t the dollar value which is the 

impact cf the determination.

QUESTION; But there is no issue as to dollar

v alue?

MB. van GESTEL; No, there is no issue as to

dollar value.

QUESTION; Well, what is the impact to which 

you refer, the broader scope?

MR. van GESTEL; The broader scope. Your 

Honcr, is that if it is determined that there is a right 

of action under the Trade and Intercourse Act, or if it 

is determined that there is no statute of limitations 

bar or there cannot be retroactive ratification or this 

is not a political question, then in this particular 

area you have the next shoe dropping, the next suit for 

the balance of the 100,000 acres against the private 

landow ners.

QUESTION; Most cf which is in private

cw nership.

MR. van GESTEL; Essentially all of which is 

in private ownership.

QUESTION; Sc it would be valued like if you
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were condemning the land or something.

ME. van GESTELs Kell, that is an issue that 

we debated in the lower court, Your Honor, but 

nevertheless, when you take the value back 175 years and 

apply interest, you have a situation that is wholly 

unmanageable. You also have title to the land. You 

have a situation which I don’t think is good for our 

system. You may have several thousand people told that 

they have to leave their land. I am not sure they will 

do it.

QUESTION* But all of this could be cured ly

Ccngre ss.

ME. van GESTEI* £11 of this could be cured by 

Congress, yes, Justice Elackmun.

I would like just ever so briefly in the time 

that I have left -- I'm sorry.

QUESTION; Hew dc you think it could be cured 

by Congress without paying cut a let of money?

ME. van GESTEI: The Congress may well have tc 

pay out some money, Ycur Hcncr.

QUESTIONS Kell, some money, cr at least as 

much as what is involved in these suits.

ME. van GESTELs I’m net sc sure of that. The 

Congress can ratify this transaction, and indeed, I 

remind the Court --
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QUESTIONi Dc you think it would?

MB. van GESTEL: I, regrettably, it hasn't —

QUESTION; Without paying money?

KB. van GESTEL; It hasn't done so thus far,

but —

QUESTION; The judgment of the Court says the 

Indians own the land and the Congress says, sorry, tut 

we don't care what a court says, you don’t own it.

MR. van GESTEL; That, I'm not sure --

QUESTION; That sounds very logical, in ether 

words, sensible.

MB. van GESTEL; It doesn't sound very nice, 

either, but I am net sure it is the basis to held the 

private landowners hostage.

Don't forget that in 1951 the same Oneida 

Indians brought their claim before the Indian Claims 

Commission provided by Congress and were successful, 

successful tc the pcint of winning a liability judgment, 

and then determined for tactical reasons not to go 

forward and collect the money that they could have 

collected at that time.

Well, let me say very briefly --

QUESTION; Tactical reasons that they wculd 

have ratified or something?

MB. van GESTEL; The tactical reason being
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that they felt they would lose the ability —

QUESTION; Tc bring this suit.

MR. van GESTE1: To bring this suit, yes.

Let me turn now from the Indians, if I may, tc 

the State of New York, who is my other opponent in this 

case, and just say ever sc briefly in the time that is 

left that if the Court feels that it is appropriate to 

permit the Indians' claim tc gc fcrward, it certainly 

ought to be flexible enough and ought tc be creative 

enough to find an ability fcr the innocent people to 

collect frcra the guilty one.

The State of New York was the one who 

participated in this transaction, not the landowners 

today, not the counties which didn't exist, sc that any 

sense of equity would suggest that there ought tc be a 

way to recover frcir the state.

QUESTION; They agree with you on the merits.

MR. van C-ESTEL; They do agree on the merits, 

and I think we should win on the merits, Your Hcncr, but 

nevertheless, assuming we dc net, we then face the 

Eleventh Amendment, and I suggest that under the 

analysis set forth in cur brief, what the State cf New 

York did was they waived their Eleventh Amendment rights 

when the State cf New Ycrk ratified the United States 

Constitution in September of 1788, which included, among
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other things, the commerce clause which placed --

QUESTION: But isr't there a — isn't there a

state grcund for their being immune, too, or not?

SB. van GESTEL: I'm unaware of a state 

grcund, Your Honor.

QUESTION^ You mean there isn't one they rcw 

claim anyway.

HE. van GESTEL: None that I'm aware cf, ard 

it seems to me that cnce the State of New Ycrk agreed 

that all management of affairs with Indians fell in with 

the federal government, therefore they were in a 

position in which they waived their rights.

QUESTION; ■ May I just ask one question on the 

Eleventh Amendment?

Supposing we held the Eleventh Amendment 

denies you access to the federal court here? Couldn't 

you sue them in state court?

MR. van GESTJEL: I doubt it, I doubt it. You 

would have to find a way under — New Ycrk has a Court 

of Claims statute, and they have a Court of Claims Act 

in some respects similar to the Federal Court cf Claims, 

but not in all respects.

QUESTION: You mean if you lose this case on

the merits, you couldn't bring an independent suit in 

the state court for — against the state?
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MR. van GESTEI: Vie certainly would try, hut 

I'm not at all confident that —

QUESTION,: But what would be the defense?

ME. van GESTEL: I suppose the defense, among 

other things, would be a sovereign immunity type 

defens e.

QUESTION: Well that’ s what I was asking you

before . Isn’t there seme sensi bl e state ground for the

state to escape the reach cf yc ur action?

MR. van GESTELi Ther e is already litigation

pendin g against the state, thus f ar not successful.

Thank you.

CHIEF JUSTICE BURC-ER*. Mr. Schiff.

ORAL ARGUMENT OF FETER H. SCHIFF, ESQ.

ON BEHALF OF PETITIONEE 

MF. SCHIFF: Mr. Chief Justice, iray it please

the Court:

As indicated, we 

the arguments cf the ccunt 

in holding the counties li 

basis of the alleged viola 

Intercourse Act. Sc ir th 

hope that the Court never 

argument which I am abcut 

totally unnecessary if you

of course do fully support 

ies that the court below erred 

able to the Indians on the 

tion of the 1793 Trade and 

at sense we would certainly 

reaches the Eleventh Amendment 

to make because it will he 

hold for us on the first
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argume nt

Eut we dc believe that the courts below also 

erred in holding the states liable for indemnification 

in this federal proceeding. The state has not waived 

its immunity except in a very limited sense. There is a 

provision, as we point out in our brief, for recovery 

when there is a failure of title cf land from the state, 

but the recovery there is only for the purchase or 

acquisition price, and without interest, so that -- and 

that recovery would be in the Court of Claims in New 

York.

We don't think that there is any other 

recovery, but if there were, that would have to be 

determined in the New York Courts. find of course, the 

law is clear that even if there were any waiver for 

suits within a state court, that would not permit suits 

in the federal court.

The court below seems to have decided against 

the state on the indemnification ground for what appear 

to be two separate bases. Cne, they made a finding that 

thre was ancillary jurisdiction because the claims cf 

the counties against the state allegedly rose cut cf he 

same core of facts as the Indians' claim against the 

counties. find secondly, the court found that the state, 

by making the purchases from the Indians under the
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treaty in 1795, had allegedly waived its immunity.

The counties in their brief indicated that 

they took, the view that these two positions were 

interdependent. In ether words, I think the counties 

conceded that unless there was a finding of waiver 

within the meaning of the various Eleventh Amendment 

cases, that they could not prevail.

I think that the decision below may have gone 

even further and may have -- and seems to have read 

ancillary jurisdiction as not necessarily depending cn 

there being an Eleventh Amendment waiver of immunity.

We think that on that latter point, this 

Court's decision in the Pennhurst case last term pretty 

well decided, I think, that fci the purpose of ancillary 

jurisdiction just like appendant jurisdiction, that 

there has to be a separate basis for jurisdiction, and 

that where there is a defense of sovereign immunity by 

the state, ancillary jurisdiction would not attach.

Sc I will not dwell cn that tut will turn cn 

the question of whether under this Court's precedents 

there was a waiver cf immunity with respect to the 

counties. In that sense, I think it is important, and 

there may not be any difference. We do not believe that 

there has been any waiver or there would be any waiver 

even with respect to the relationship with the Indians,
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but that issue dees not necessarily ccire into play here 

because there is no suit against the state by the 

Indian s.

Put looking at that overall Question, we think 

that this Court's decision in Edelman v. Jordan is 

really quite dispositive. As we understand that case, 

there would be no waiver unless in the very first 

instance the suit under which waiver is being sought 

provides for a — suits that in terms includes actions 

against a state.

New, whatever can be said about this 

particular case, there is no statute which in terms 

provides for suits against anycne, let alone the state, 

and the argument is going to be made, of course, that 

there is either an implied common law right of action or 

that it is implied under the Trade and Intercourse Act, 

with which we don't agree.

But there is no argument that there is any 

statutory provision for a suit against anycne. And the 

county does argue that that should make no difference if 

the Court implies a cause of action against it or 

against them, then in turn the Court should imply that 

there is a, in terms of the possibility of a suit 

against the state.

New, it seems to us that that would undermine
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what appears to be the logic behind the Edelman test 

which, taking into account that Congress does not 

lightly impute waivers to the state, or even the 

possibility that the state might waive its sovereign 

immunity, where there is no specific prevision in terms 

for suits that might include the state, the state, by 

actig under a statute, would have no idea that it might 

be liable for suit because no one else was specifically 

liable for suit.

Sc that in this case the absence of any 

express provision for suit makes the test in Edelman 

totally inapplicable, and the state could not have 

waived its immunity.

QUESTION; You don’t mean that the test in 

Edelman is inapplicable. You mean that it comes cut 

against the county.

MB. SCHIFF: Yes, I stand corrected, the test 

in Edelman is applicable, but it doesn’t help the 

counties. I should say the counties dc not meet the 

threshold, test in Edelman that there was a suit -- 

statute that literally provided for a suit against the 

state.

QUESTION; Well, you say it doesn’t help the 

county, but does it help ycu?

MR. SCHIFF; Oh, I think so because if ycu
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don't shew that

QUESTION: Well, that — tetter --

MR. SCHIFF: If --

QUESTION; That's the bottom line.

MR. SCHIFF: Well, if you don't meet that 

threshold test, as I understand it, it simply isn't 

any — waiver could not have taken place.

There is an additional argument made that, 

well, that test shouldn't apply in this case because 

what happened here happened in 1795, and that the Trade 

and Intercourse Act preceded the adoption of the 

Eleventh Amendment, which probably became effective in 

1795 as well, and with little debate. I don't think 

that makes any difference. The fact is that this Court 

has explained on numerous occasions the state's immunity 

from suits by its own citizens. In this case, it would 

be the county, does not actually literally stem from the 

Eleventh Amendment, but it really inheres in the 

provisions of the Constitution in Article 3, which was 

recently reiterated in the Pennhurst case as well. Put 

it was -- that was firsst played out I think in Hans v. 

Louisiana. .

If you will recall, the Eleventh Amendment 

arose because of the case of Chisholm v. Georgia, which 

involved a suit by a citizen of South Carolina right

34



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

after the beginning of the Fepublic, against the State 

of Georgia, and the citizen of South Carolina relied 

upon the provision in the Constitution which provided 

for suits against a state and citizens of another state, 

and this Court agreed that that provided jurisdiction 

against the contention of the states, including 

particularly Georgia, that that provision of the 

Constitution was not intended to be reciprocal but was 

only intended to provide for a one way street of suits 

against a state by citizens of another state.

Very soon after that, almost immediately after 

the Chisholm decision, the Eleventh Amendment was passed 

by the Congress and ratified by the states because the 

Congress simply didn't agree with that interpretation. 

But significantly, the Eleventh Amendment and the 

Chisholm case didn't deal at all with a suit by a 

citizen of one state against its own state, and I think 

that there was never any question but that sovereign 

immunity existed at that time. And it would be strange 

indeed to think that the Congress which passed the 

Eleventh Amendment in 1793, 1795, had any thought that 

in passing the Trade and Intercourse Act that the states 

were not immune from suits by their own citizens.

So aoain, there is no basis for finding a 

waiver of immunity here.
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Finally, the ether part of the waiver argument 

below was that this accusation was allegedly a 

proprietary act. I do not believe that that can be, the 

acquisition of this land by treaty in any sense properly 

could be viewed as proprietary, even if the state did 

sell it for more than it originally purchased it fer, 

substantially more.

But as our reply brief points out, there was a 

substantial amount of state legislation afterwards which 

at least delayed the payments, and we don't knew whether 

the payments for this land were actually ever made.

QUESTION: Did you raise some state law

defense to state liability in this?

ME. SCHIFF: I'm sorry.

QUESTION; Did you raise any state grounds for 

being immune from liability over it?

ME. SCHIFF; Well, we have -- we contend that 

the only liability could be under the Eea1 Property 

Act --

QUESTION; Well, this is --

ME. SCHIFF; Which would not be in the federal

court.

QUESTION; The county has claimed ever acainst 

the state in this case.

ME. SCHIFF: That's right.
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QUESTION! And did you assert any defense to 

that claim over based cn the state law, did you in this 

case?

ME. SCHIFF: Sell, we also argue that --

QUESTION: Well, did you or not? That's a yes

or no.

ME. SCHIFF: Well, I think we raised a defense 

that the law that was applied telow. Justice White, was 

applied incorrectly.

QUESTION: What did you raise, what did yet

raise in the trial court? What was your pleadings?

ME. SCHIFF: I think we claimed sovereign 

immunity essentially.

QUESTION: Cn Eleventh Amendment grounds, tut

on state ground, too?

ME. SCHIFF: Well, the argument in state is —

QUESTION: I would think if you had claimed

the state ground, that federal — the court would have 

decided the case on — never would have needed to reach 

the Eleventh Amendment.

MR. SCHIFF: Well, as far as I read it, there 

was an argument before Judge Pert, and we argued the 

real property law. That is not a total bar. The real 

property liw would permit recovery of the amounts paid, 

but it doesn't — so we have argued, one of our grounds
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for the cert petition, that the state law was totally 

misapplied below, and as a matter of fact, it was really 

quite ignored by the courts below. It is impossible to 

tell from reading the district judge's opinion what be 

dec ide d.

QUESTIONS Well, what --

MR. SCHIFFs And the —

QUESTIONS What business would we have 

reaching the Eleventh, a federal constitutional issue if 

the case could go off on a state ground?

MR. SCHIFFs Well, I think that there is a 

threshold jurisdictional question, tut that might be 

appropriate as well. We don’t say that that wouldn’t 

be, but I don’t think you e\er reach that because that 

we think that the Eleventh and the sovereign immunity 

question has to be reached first because whatever remedy 

there really is here should be in a state court.

Finally, I think I would like to point out on 

the overall claim about the Indians, where we do agree 

with the counties, that arguments will be made here and 

have been made in the brief that there is a -- what 

difference does it make? If the United States can bring 

this action, why shouldn’t the Indians be allowed to 

seek recovery?

We are thoroughly convinced that Judge Meskill
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was quite correct t elow that there is a vast difference 

between having a series of seriatim actions, individual 

actions, which is scrt cf exemplified £y this case.

This case involves 872 acres ard cnly the income for two 

years, where the potential liability goes back 190 

years, 175 years, depending on how you look at it, ard a 

great deal of -- much more acreage.

This private, these actions are picking and 

choosing. We think that the federal government, which 

has the authority under the 1793 act to take general 

action, that that remedy provided nearly 200 years aco 

should be the one that this Court provides for this 

action .

We ask for a reversal.

Thank you very much.

CHIEF JUSTICE EUFGFE: Ms. Locklear?

OF £L ARGUMENT CF MS. £ FLIN DA F. ICCKIEAF 

ON BEHALF OF RESPONDENTS

MS. ICCKIFARj Mr. Chief Justice, and may it 

please the Court*

The events that gave rise to this litigation 

occurred during this ccuntrys' very infancy. During the 

Revolutionary War, the Cneida Indian Nation fought as 

this country’s steadfast ally. As a result of that 

alliance, the Oneida Nations villages were turned, and
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the Oneidas «ere forced tc vacate their lands.

At the conclusion of the Eevclutionary War, 

the United States, as a show of faith and appreciation 

for the service of its ally, guaranteed the Cneidas the 

continued possession of its lands. That guarantee 

appears in three federal treaties over a period cf ten 

years; First, the 1784 Treaty cf Fort Stanwix, second, 

the 1789 Treaty of Fort Harmar, and third, the 1794 

Treaty of Canandaigua. The Treaty of Canandaigua, the 

last of those three, still remains in force and effect 

between the parties. In fact, the Oneidas today 

continue to receive annuity payments under the Treaty of 

Canandaigua.

Despite these treaty guarantees, on September 

15, 1795, the State cf New Icrk purported tc purchase 

approximately 100,000 acres of the treaty guaranteed 

lands. There is nc doubt ir this case that that 

purchase was in vicla-tion of the 1793 Indian Trade and 

Intercourse Act. The parties here do not dispute that 

fact. Neither can there be any doubt that that 

transaction was concluded by the state with 

foreknowledge that it was acting in violation cf federal 

law.

The unrefuted evidence in this case 

establishes clearly that Governor Jay had been directly
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informed by then Secretary of War Pickering that in the 

opinion cf the United States Attorney General at that 

time, Mr. Bradford, that the 1793 Indian Trade and 

Intercourse Act applied tc state purchases of Indian 

land, and where the state purported tc act without the 

consent of the federal government, applied to void those 

transa ctions.

QUESTION’. The advice of the Attorney General 

doesn't make the law, does it?

MS. LOCKLEAEi No, Your Honor, it does net, 

but what it does do is indicate --

QUESTION; I know that — I know some 

Attorneys General would like it that way.

MS. LOCKLEAEi What it does do in this case, 

Justice White, is indicate that the state was acting net 

in ignorance of the law but had been put on notice that 

at least in the view of --

QUESTION; Well, they could just have -- could 

just honestly have disagreed with the Attorney General. 

They weren't ignorant at all. They might have said we 

have the better view of the law.

MS. LOCKIEAE; Had that been the case, one 

might have expected a response, but Governor Jay did not 

respond. Eather, Governor --

QUESTION! Well, he may have thought it was a
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frivolous fight

MS. LOCKLEAR; That’s possible, Your Honor, 

that’s entirely possible. Ve do net have any historic 

evidence on that point, but the point remains that 

Governor Jay acted not out of ignorance of the statute 

and at least its interpretation by the United States, 

but acted with knowledge of the interpretation of 

Attorney General Bradford.

QUESTION: Well —

MS. LCCKIEAR; Finally, it is —

QUESTION; Go ahead.

MS. LOCKLEAR; Pardon me.

QUESTION: Go ahead. I’m sorry.

MS. LCCKIEARt Third, it is also importa nt in 

this case that none of the parties, disputes that the 

United States could achieve essentially the same relief 

that te Cneida parties are seeking today.

QUESTION; But the United States didn’t seek 

to obtain that relief, did it?

MS. LOCKLEAR* No, Your Honor, they did net.

QUESTION; Sc what is the point?

MS. LOCKLEAR: So then the question is a very 

narrow one before this Court, and that is only whether 

the Oneidas can seek to set aside an admittedly void 

transaction cf the United States —
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QUESTION* One hundred seventy-five years

later.

MS. LOCKLEAR* Yes, Oneida Indian Nation.

What I will deal with my remarks this 

afternoon will he, first of all, the existence of a 

cause of action, very briefly, the statute of 

limitations defense asserted by the Petitioners today, 

and the defense of implied ratification asserted by the 

Petiti oners.

First, the cause of action issue. It seems to 

me it is appropriate at this point to make two simple 

observations, and then I will conclude my remarks on 

this point. One is that we cannot construe the Indian 

Trade and Intercourse Act in a vacuum. At the time, 

Congress was acting against a background of clearly 

established federal law principles. Two of those 

important principles were at the time, first, that the 

Indian tribes had acknowledged under principles of 

international law exclusive rights to occupancy to their 

land, and secondly, that these exclusive rights of 

occupancy could be extinguished only by act of the 

so vere ign .

Against that background, the first Congress 

passed the Indian Trade and Intercourse Act, and ir the 

words of this Court in its 1974 decision, the
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ncn-intercourse act prevision of that statute simply 

codified what was or came to be the accepted principle 

that Indian title could be extinguished only with the 

consent of the United States. The non-intercourse act 

provision must be construed, then, as against that 

background, not as creating a wholly new substantive 

area of law or a wholly new right of the Indian tribes, 

but in recognizing pre-existing rights and providing for 

the further protection of them.

Secondly, it is important to —

CUESTICN: Dc you rely on any particular case,

Ms. Locklear, for establishing the federal common law 

right of action that ycu assert?

MS. LOCKLEAR: Yes, Justice O'Connor.

Primarily we rely for that proposition cn the case 

Johnson v. M'Intosh. What occurred in that case was it 

was essentially a property dispute between twe 

non-Indian claimants. One cf the claimants was a 

successor in interest to an Indian tribe.

What the Court did in that case was lock tc 

these principles of international law to ascertain, 

first cf all, what the Indian tribes* right of occupancy 

were to that land, and secondly, whether or not these 

rights cculd be conveyed to the non-Indian claimant in 

the suit without the consent of the general government.
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The Court held in that decision that it could

net.

Now, we rely on those two principles as 

forming the basic elements of a federal common law cause 

of action in this case.

QUESTION: But we really don’t have a case

involving a suit by an Indian trite, I suppose, on this 

cause of action .

MS. IOCKLEAE; There are no -- there are no 

suits arising at that time by Indian tribes asserting 

the precise cause cf action we have here, bet we think 

that the principles in Johnson v. M’Intosh clearly apply 

tc this situation. Here there any spaces left in the 

development of the federal common law at that time, we 

think they were adequately filled by the enactment cf 

the 1790 Indian Trade and Intercourse Set which did, in 

fact, on its face, purport to establish a special 

protection for Indian tribes, and did in fact codify the 

principle that Indian land could not be lost without the 

consent of the federal government.

We think that clearly between the two, the 

principles cf Johnson v. M’Intosh, and Congress with 

subsequent enactments cf the Indian Trade and 

Intercourse Act, that there is a cause cf action.

Kcw, I will turn my attention to the statute
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of limitations issue in an effort to respond to seme of 

the Court's inquiries in that regard.

first of all, it is the position of the 

Respondents in this case that 28 U.S.C. Section 2415 

certainly does apply, loth with respect to the monetary 

damages aspect cf these claims and the title aspect.

QUESTION; I thought 2415 only applied by its 

terms to an action brought by the United States.

MS. 1CCKIEAE; Yes, Your Honor, by its terms 

it does, but I refer the Court to 2415 Subsecton (a).

The words "Indian tribe" do not appear in that 

subsection, but as Justice C'Ccnnor observed earlier, it 

is clear from the language there that Congress intended 

there to be a statute cf limitations governing money 

claims brought by tribes as well as the United States. 

That implication is clear from the following.

The statute first of all sets up a procedure 

by which the Secretary of the Interior can ascertain 

which money damages claims should be brought by the 

United States. Those lists are to be published. A 

second list is to be published which rejects certain 

claims by the Secretary as unmeritorious. Finally, 

subsection (a) provides that with respect to the 

rejected claims, the suit must be brought within a year 

thereafter or be forever barred.
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It is clear from both the legislative histcry 

and the statute framework itself that within that year 

period cf time the only suits that would be filed would 

certainly not be by the Secretary of the Interior but by 

the tribes themselves.

QUESTION; Well, but the Secretary of the 

Interior, after he publishes, might be persuaded to 

change his mind by the Indians. Perhaps that is the 

purpose of publication.

MS. LOCKLEAR; That’s possible.

QUESTION; I mean, I don’t think you -- 

certainly you are arguing very much by implication and 

not by what the statute says on its face.

MS. LOCKLEAR; That statutory language, 

however, is informed by the legislative history which 

makes clear that the one year grace period was a period 

provided for tribes themselves within which to act. For 

instance, there is much discussion in the legislative 

history cf getting appropriate notice to the tribes 

involved so that the tribes will knew wbat steps heve 

been taken .

QUESTION; Well, legislative history isn’t 

quite the same thing as the statute, statutory language 

that Congress chose.

MS. LOCKLEAR; No, Your Honor, that is
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correct, but I think between the two it is clear that in 

the 1982 amendment to Section 2415, there is evidence 

that Congress intended cr believed that the statute of 

limitations governing ircney damages claims applied then 

as it had applied for the prior five amendments to that 

statute to tribal suits themselves.

Now, what we have, if Congress on the one hand 

establishes a parallel track between the United States 

and tribal claims on trespass damages, we then refer to 

subsection (c) which says that no statute of limitations 

shall tar title suits brought by the United States cn 

behalf cf Indian tribes.

QUESTION; But that assumes that the cause of 

action was subsisting as of that time. What if the 

cause cf action had earlier been barred?

NS. LOCKLEAR; We agree, Justice Eehnquist, it 

does assume that the cause of action existed, and we 

alsc pcint to that as some evidence that the cause cf 

action did in fact exist. There are, however, prior 

acts of Congress which indicate in- ever strcnger terms 

that such causes of action did exist. For instance, 28 

U.S.C. Section 1362, which in its legislative history 

refers to a case brought by a tribe which was in fact an 

Indian Trade and Intercourse Act claim.

QUESTION; But 1362 is just a grant cf
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jurisdiction, isn't it?

MS. ICCKLEARi That's correct, Ycur Hcncr.

QUESTION; The fact that legislative history- 

might refer to a case, I would think that it would be 

the jurisdictional aspect, not the merits, that would be 

of interest in the case.

MS. LOCKLEAR: That's correct. Your Honor, but 

we point to both Secton 1362 and Section 2415 as net 

giving rise to the cause of action itself but simply 

evidencing Congress’ assumption that the cause cf action 

ex iste d.

I think the legislative history of both 

statutes is relevant for that purpose.

QUESTION; Well, but the cause of action once 

existed, but that doesn't evidence Congress -- any 

particular Congress' view that the thing might not have 

been barred at that time.

MS. LOCKLEARi That's correct, Your Honor. 

That's why I return to the literal language cf Section 

2415 which on its face, Section 2415, subsection (c) on 

its face states that no such claims brought by the 

United States shall be —

QUESTION: That's not quite an accurate

reading cf that subsection.

QUESTION; It certainly isn't.
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QUESTION; It says nothing herein contained 

shall tar a statute.

QUESTION; Yes.

QUESTION; It doesn't say there's no statute 

of limitations.

MS. LOCKLEAR; That's true, Your Honor. It 

has been accepted by all the parties in this case, 

however, as meaning that result. I think even the 

Petitioners —

QUESTION; Yes, but don't you first have the 

burden of demonstrating that the action had not been 

barred prior to 1966?

QUESTION; Yes.

MS. LOCKLEAR; Yes, Your Honor.

QUESTION; Eecause if it was barred in 1966, 

that statute doesn't revive any already barred claims, 

does it?

MS. LOCKLEAR; We accept that burden. Your 

Honor. We point to the 1982 amendment of that statute, 

however, as evidence of what Congress thought it had 

been doing all along with the prior amendments of 

Section 2415.

QUESTION; Yes, but maybe Congress was wrong 

in thinking that. I mean, it seems to me you have the 

burden of showing what the law, not what Congress

50



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

thought the lav was.

QUESTION: And that's just the view of one

Congre ss.

MS. LOCKLEAR: The point here. Your Honor, is 

that Section 2415 -- all parties here essentially admit 

or acknowledge that the inquiry here is whether the 

Congress has applied a statute, a federal statute cf 

limitations. If it has not, then the Petitioners argue 

we should look to state law to see what may be an 

applicable state statute.

QUESTION: I understand they argue that, but

it seems to me you must look to state law before 1966 

first of all, and I think you rely on the Ewert case, 

and that's all you've got for the prior period, isn't 

that right?

MS. LOCKLEAR: Nc, Ycur Honor, there are ether 

indications as well. Even before the 1982 amendment to 

Section 2415, it had been construed by the Ninth Circuit 

to apply to claims brought by tribes as well as claims 

brought by the United States.

QUESTION: I understand, but we are not bound

by the Ninth Circuit.

QUESTION: Nc, we sure aren't.

MS. LOCKLEAR: Apart from the merits of the 

Ninth Circuit’s analysis, however, we do rely on the
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Congress' interpretation in the 1982 amendment as some

e vide nee of what Congress ir. tended tc dc in the earlier 

sections as well, so that as of 1970 —

QUESTION: Ir other words, you rely on the

1982 statute to tell us what the 1966 statute meant.

MS. LOCKIEAR: It can shed scire light, leer 

Honor, particularly in light of the fact that Congress 

apparently in the 1970, the applicable version in 1970 

of the statute was assuming that such causes of action 

existed. Otherwise, the need for the statute would rot 

have a risen.

QUESTION: But you must acknowledge the

possibility that the assumption was erroneouis.

MS. LCCKIEAR: Yes, Your Honor, but I think 

that the Congress’ assumption on that point is some 

evidence of what the law in fact was. And I think we 

can also point to similar statutes involving restraints 

on alienation of allotted Indian lands where this Court 

has indicated that once Congress ascertains hew title is 

to be extinguished in that respect, state law generally 

should net apply tc breaden the means cf 

extinguishment.

The cases such as Bunch v. Cole, in addition 

tc Iwert v. Bluejacket --

QUESTION: But that’s talking about state law
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operating after Congress has spoken

I think what Justice 

that state law might have opera 

spoke in 1982, so I don' think 

necessarily analogous.

MS. LOCKLEAR.* Sell, 

Honor, to Congress* having spok 

cause of action in fact arose u 

then we think it is appropriate 
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Sc the question new is as of 1970 when this 

suit is filed, has there — has the Congress 

acknowledged another means, that is by application cf a 

state statute of limitations.

QUESTIONi Well, do you really think that the 

only fair reading cf the 1793 statute is that it 

absolutely by its terms precludes the application cf 

statutes of limitation?

MS. LOCKLEAR; Not absolutely by its terms. 

Your Honor, but that is a fair implication from the 

literal language of the statute.

C0ES1ICN: Well, a great deal of your case

seems to depend on implication on implication on 

implic a ti c n .

MS. LOCKLEAR; Well, in a moment, Your Honor,

I will address the implied ratification argument cf the 

Petitioners —

(Laughter)

MS. LCCK1EAR; But tc respond to -- to respond 

further to the argument on the statute cf limitations, 

what we thiunk we have here embodied in the 1793 act, 

which is what we rely on for our cause of action, is a 

strong policy statement by the Congress that Indian 

title can be acquired through only one means.

CUESTIGN; Yes, but you don’t need Section
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2415 or anything else then. You just need the Trade and 

Intercourse Act.

KS. LOCKLEAR; Exactly, Your Honor. We rely 

on Section 2415 —

QUESTION; Unless Congress says something 

besides the Trade and Intercourse Act, there is no 

statute of limitations, there just isn’t any.

KS. LOCKLEAR; That’s correct, Your Honor. We

rely --

QUESTION; Yes, but didn’t Congress say 

something else in the Rules of Decision Act which was 

enacted at about the same time?

MS. LOCKLEAR* Eardon me? I am sorry.

QUESTION; Didn’t Congress say something 

rather express about when there is no federal rule of 

law, you look to state law.

MS. LOCKLEAR; Yes, Your Honor.

QUESTION; In the Rules of Decision Act, which 

was enacted way back in the time you are talking about.

MS. I0CKIEAR; Yes, Your Honor, that is true, 

but I think what we have got to keep in mind here is the 

body of law on the general issue that we are dealing 

with. We are dealing with, as this Court observed in 

its ’74 opinion in this case, a very uniquely federal 

interest, and that is the preservation of Indian land.
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It is not the usual rule in Indian law that a state 

statute cf limitations or ether state defense will le 

adopted to apply tc bar Indian property rights. It runs 

contrary to a number cf rules cf construction relatirg 

to the proper means of construing treaties, for 

instance, the proper means fer resolving ambiguities, 

and —

QUESTION: Yes, but those are rules you get to

after you get ever the statute cf limitaticns bar and 

you get to the merits.

US. LOCKLEAR: Veil, we think those are rules 

that would apply in the first instance to the Indian 

Trade and Interccurse Act cf 1793.

QUESTION: Fine.

MS. ICCKIEAR: To determine by what means 

Indian title can be extinguished.

And in our view, the state statute of 

limitations has not been one that Congress has accepted 

as an appropriate means to extinguish Indian title, and 

that is the effect of the application cf a statute cf 

limita tion s.

What we would have in effect would be a system 

that would be virtually unadministe rab le by the United 

States if that were the case. We would have a system 

where 5C different statutes of limitations would apply
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to tar claims by Indian trites depending on the 

happenstance of the location of those lands.

New, there are approximately 300 Indian tribes 

in this ccuctry with trust lands so that each one vctld 

have a different federal interest in that land depending 

on the fortuity of where that land was located.

QUESTION i Yes, but I imagine most of them 

have statutes that are shorter than 175 years.

MS. ICCKIEAR: Considerably, Your Hcncr.

QUESTION; Sc I think the uniformity problem 

may not be very serious.

MS. LOCKLEAR; Rut there is considerable 

variance among them, and it is that variance that the 

Congress —

QUESTION; Which Congress expressly said they 

wanted in the statute of limitations area in 1983 

litigation. There used to he all sorts of federal 

claims having this very problem in them.

MS. LOCKLEAR; Yes, Your Hcncr, that is true, 

but it is also true —

QUESTION; And I agree with ycu it is net a 

very wise solution, but Congress seems to be happy with 

it.

MS. LOCKLEAR; It is also true, Your Honor, 

that in the unique context of Indian property rights,
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that where Congress has intended to apply a state

statute cf limitations, it has generally dene sc 

expressly. In the context of Indian allotments, for 

instance, there are some previsions made that were the 

subject, I believe, of this Court's opinion in United 

States v. Clark, some reference to them, where the state 

jurisdiction and in some respects state law was made 

applicable to the condemnation of Indian allottees.

There are other instances where Congress, by 

express prevision, has applied state law to govern 

either acquisition cf or litigation relating to Indian 

property rights. That makes it all the more significant 

that in this respect, in the important respect of tribal 

property rights and the basic statute that protects 

these rights. Congress has not done sc.

In fact, when Congress has expressly dealt 

with the issue cf statute cf limitations, it has either 

done so only with respect to the United States and 

treated tribes similarly, cr been silent on the matter. 

So that is a strong indication, given.the peculiarity of 

Indian property rights, that state statutes of 

limitations do not apply.

QUESTION i I have no found anything in the 

papers, volumincus papers filed here, which would 

indicate what is the long range, overall consequence if
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your position is correct. It isn't the $16,COO of 

course .

How many millions cf dollars are involved 

here? Does anyone knot? Has anyone made any 

est ima tes?

MS. ICCKIEAR: There is -- there has beer r.o 

overall estimate made cf that figure, to my knowledge.

QUESTION* Well, someone must have thought

about it.

MS. LOCKLEAR; Well, I gather the Eetiticners

have.

QUESTION* Erring the twelve years cf 

litigation?

MS. LOCKLEAR: Yes, Your Honor, there has teen 

seme attention paid to that, brt I would caution the 

Court that many of the statements describing those 

consequences by the Petitioner are both speculative and 

based on hyperbole.

QUESTION; But there is still -- at least 

there is the remainder of the 100,000, isn't there?

MS. LOCKLEAR: Apart from some question as to 

whether or not the Oneida have split their cause cf 

action, there is seme question as to the remaining 

100,000 acres, yes, Yccr Hcrcr.

QUESTION: You say there is some question —
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you say the claim could be made about the rest of the 

100 ,00 0 acres.

MS. LOCKLEAEs Yes, Your Honor, subject tc a 

possible defense by the Petitioners of having split our 

cause of action.

QOESTlOffi And I suppose there would be an 

argument about any ether, any ether land that allegedly 

was acquired contrary to the Trade and Intercourse Act.

MS. LOCKLEAR i Yes, Your Honor.

The point that we have to keep in mind in 

dealing with the so-called consequences of this is that 

the consequences are in a real viorld context, and they 

are not in a context of sheer speculation. That context 

includes a number cf c c r.gre ssic nal settlements of prior 

cases, and also Congress* expressed and continued 

interest in oversight cf these cases.

Now, the Congress has asserted authority in 

itself, if need be, to act to resolve these problems, as 

has been pointed out earlier. Congress has reserved 

that point up to this point with respect to this claim 

because it did net perceive that the consequences were 

so severe as the Petitioners have suggested.

In fact, Congress has the — many of the 

members who spoke in opposition to certain bills vhich 

wuld have that effect have stated that the general view
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of Congress is tc prefer a negotiated settlement aircrg 

the parties which would resolve forever these claims.

That is the real world context of these

cas es.

QUESTION! Do you agree with the suggestion of 

the Solicitor General that even if you were right on the 

statute of limitations question, that it doesn't apply, 

that laches would te applicable here tc the action for 

damages for trespass, or that the courts would have 

ether equitable powers to reduce the damages reliefs

MS. LOCKLEAB: Not quite. Your Honor. Insofar 

as the context of this case is concerned, we dc ret 

believe that a laches or any equity remedies or offsets 

are available. What we have here are counties who 

should stand in the shoes of the state, who acquired 

most of the land directly from the state as the original 

wrongdoer, so that the laches defense Is not available.

Now, whether —

QUESTION : Is that the reason you filed an 

action for damages rather than the judgment, to get away 

from laches?

MS. LOCK IE AR 4 No, Your Honor, the primary 

reason the action was filed as one for damages is 

because it was seen as a test case by the parties at the 

time, to establish —
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QUESTION; And you didn't want laches.

HE. ICCKIEAE; Pardon me?

QUESTION; You didn't want tc have to face up

to laches.

MS. LOCKLEAR; We did not want to have to face 

laches, this is true.

But the laches issue I think is one that is 

appropriately reserved for the appropriate case, and 

that is one between an Indian tribal claimant and true 

private individuals who assert good faith occupancy cf 

the land. The counties in this case are neither private 

individuals nor can they assert good faith occupancy of 

the land.

In fact, their occupancy has -- the gocd faith 

of theicr occupancy is the cne issue that remains yet 

for determination by the District Court in this case.

QUESTION; Ms. Locklear, could I ask you a 

question about laches?

As I read the Ewert case, if the state statute 

cf limitations has run, then the burder is on the 

Plaintiff in a case such as this to disprove laches.

MS. LOCKLEAR: Yes, Your Honor.

QUESTION; And I think you have the burden of 

shewing an absence cf laches, if the Ewert case 

applie s .
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Sc I am not sure ycu car. escape it that

ea sily .

MS. LOCKLEAR i We don’t purport tc on that 

basis only. Your Hcnor. If the Court will examine the 

trial record in this case, ycu will find that there was 

extensive testimony given in the original trial cn 

liability as tc what steps the Oneidas had taken during 

the so-called 195 years, or 75 I think is the phrase 

that the Petitioners used -- tc reach a resolution cf 

these claims. There is a clear record cf continued 

activity on the part of the Cneidas to take whatever 

steps were available tc them at the time to resolve this 

matter. There was nc evidence offered to refute any of 

that evidenc at the trial of liability. Sc to that 

extent, cur evidence on laches, if we should reach that 

point, stands unrefuted by the petitioners. And in 

fact, the District Ccurt held, based on that evidence, 

that laches could not apply because the Oneidas for 

variety of reasons were subject to a number of 

circumstances that precluded them from actually 

proceeding with the lawsuit itself, although they had 

taken other steps.

QUESTICNi And then gcing back tc Justice 

C’Ccnncr's question, ycu are not just slightly at odds 

with the government, ycu are 18C degrees apart frcm them
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on this question.

MS. LOCKIEAR; With respect tc this case, we 

are 180 degrees apart.

With respect to any future litigation that may 

arise as between Oneida parties or any other tribal 

claimant and private defendants, that is an issue that 

is yet unresolved. It may he entirely appropriate fcr 

the Court under those circumstances tc look to equity 

factors.

In fact, we believe the Court did that --

QUESTION: Can the Court do that if it is an

action at law?

MS. LOCKLEAR; I think the Court can, Your 

Honor. Under the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, of 

course, we no longer hcnor that distinction, and because 

this is a peculiar case where the remedy is generally 

shaped by developing federal common law, it may be 

appropriate for the Court tc leek to equity factors.

And in fact, I think that is exactly what happened 

here. The District Court in this case held erroneously, 

we argued in the Second Circuit, but unsuccessfully, 

that the counties here did occupy the land in good 

faith, and as a result of that, awarded the counties an 

offset against the trespass damages for their good faith 

occupancy. So to that extent, this very judgment that
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is before the Court takes these equity considerations 

into account.

Hew, as tc what these equity considerations 

may mean in future litigation between different parties 

is an issue that is really rot before the Court in this 

con tex t.

If I may in my few remaining moments, I would 

like tc address the Fetiticrer's argument of implied 

ratification. Here we really are dealing with an issue 

cf double implication, if anything.

We must begin with seme determination as tc 

the appropriate standard to be applied in ascertaining 

whether cr not a particular act extinguished Indian 

title. This Court in United States v. Santa Fe Railroad 

laid down the appropriate rule, in cur cpinicn. That • 

rule is that Indian title can be extinguished only by 

the plain and unambiguous act cf Congress.

Even the Fetitioners do not assert that the 

facts they rely on constitute plain and unambiguous 

ratification of the 1795 transaction.

So assuming for the moment that the 

Fetitioners are correct as to the proper standard tc 

apply* they still have not met the burden cf preef in 

that regard. Even if we apply the so-called explicit 

ratification, explicit acknowledgement and implicit
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ratification standard that the Petitioners seek, we find

their evidence lacking .

Essentially, what happened is this. In 17 S 8 

another transaction occurred between the Oneida Nation 

and the State of New York. As part of that transaction, 

Governor Jay did request and did receive the presence 

and approval of a federal commission. That transaction 

was then submitted to the United States Senate for its 

formal ratification, and by twc-thirds vote that 

document was ratified. The document was then published 

by the President as a binding treaty.

That is what ratification means. That Is not 

what occurred in 1795.

CHIEF JUSTICE BUR GER : You are now using Mr. 

Kneedler's time.

MS. LOCKLEAR: I see that I am, Your Honor.

Thank you.

CHIEF JUSTICE BURGER: Mr. Kneedler.

ORAL ARGUMENT CF EDWIN S. KNEEDLER, ESQ.,

AS AMICUS CURIAE

MR. KNEEDLER: Thank you, Mr. Chief Justice, 

and may it please the Court;

The Petitioners have suggested in this case 

that it is a — that it presents questions or issues of 

broad importance affecting numerous eastern land
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claims. One cannot ignore, and we dc net ignore the 

eastern land claims tha have been brought. But in this 

case, the issues that Plaintiffs have brought to this 

Court are limited, and principally the ones that I will 

address now are the application of the statute of 

limitations in this setting and also, to a lesser 

extent, the existence of a cause of action.

QUESTION: Are you going to say in your

argument why you think the statute of limitations claim 

is limited?

MB. KNEEDLEE: I didn't mean to imply that the 

claim is limited; all I meant is that the issues are 

confined. The number of issues in this case are 

confined to a few. I didn't mean to suggest that --

QUESTION: I see what you men.

MF. KNEEDIER: In fact, the point I would like 

tc make with respect to the statute of limitations issue 

is that the arguments that are being advanced-here go 

far beyond eastern land claims, and they go far beyond 

old claims as opposed tc new ones.

What the Petitioners are arguing for with 

respect to the application of state statutes of 

limitation would be a radical departure from what has 

been the accepted norm in the area with respect tc 

Indian law for the entire existence of this nation, and
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it could cause considerable disruption in the 

administration of Indian affairs.

Now, it is true that this case presents a 

claim that is 175 years old, but the problem that a 

state statute of limitations should be tarred as tte 

applicable rule in a suit by Indians, if applied to the 

everyday administration of Indian affairs, could be 

quite chaotic for the Secretary of the Interior.

QUESTION : Why would that be so? The 

government would have to bring a suit, that's all --

MB. KNEEDIERs Well, but the --

QUESTION: They'd all be barred.

ME. KNEEDIEE: One cf the difficulties is that 

the _as --

QUESTION: It is unusual tc hear the

suggestion that getting rid of a great mass of 

litigation would cause chaos.

ME. KNEEDLER: What the effect would be would 

be to create pressure for the United States to sue in 

perhaps a shorter period of time to resolve the claim in 

its own irind in a shorter period of time than Congress 

has intended to allow the United States to have in 

assessing a claim.

QUESTION: Well, Congress had to get around

telling the Department of Interior to get with it.
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didn't they?

MR. KNEEDLER; Well, that's right, hut one of 

the — hut it's important that in the background cf the 

extensions of the statutes of limitation, one of the 

things Congress focused on each time it extended the 

statute cf limitations was the vast number of claims 

that the Interior Department had to deal with, 

specifically, in that case, ths claims that predated 

1966. But this is by no means unique to the older 

claims. All the time in the daily administration of the 

Interior Department's programs, there are Indian claims 

that arise. Congress specified in 2415 that the United 

States ordinarily is to have six years within which to 

bring an Indian claim.

New, if othere was a cne year statute cf 

limitations on a particular claim, the Interior 

Department would be required effectively to decide witin 

a year as to whether the claim had merit.

QUESTION: Well, I don’t think anyone is

contending that after Congress prescribed particular 

limitations, end up in 1982, that state statutes apply.

I think it is tc the period tefore Congress started 

prescribing that these arguments are address.

MR. KNEEIIER: Well, tut I had understood 

Petitioners to be arguing that the 2415 and the Indian
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Claims Limitation Act cf 1982 have nothing to do with 

claims brought hy tribes, and we think that that is 

clearly wrong both because, as Ms. Locklear pointed out, 

that the text and legislative history of the act shews 

that Congress intended it to apply to Indian claims, but 

alsc that it is the appropriate source cf a statute cf 

limita tiens.

QUESTION* Well, where does the text of the 

act show that it was intended to apply to claims by 

Indian tribes?

ME. KNEEDLER: Well, specifically with respect 

to the procedures that Ms. Locklear referred to before 

with respect to furnishing the tribes, this is the 

procedure for the cider damage claims, with respect to 

furnishing the tribes with the information about their 

claims and giving them one year within which to assess 

it, and then the Indian Claims limitation Act says that 

any cause of action not brought within a year shall be 

barred, not just a cause of action by the United States, 

and this isn't just in 2415. There was a supplemental 

statute that amended 2415 called the Indian Claims 

Limitations Act which specifically says any cause cf 

action, not just a cause of action by the United States, 

shall be barred if not brought within one year of the 

time the information was furnished to the tribe.
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QUESTION: Well, what is the relevance cf

those statutes relating to 2415 and the 1982 amendments 

to the 1970 lawsuit brought before they were enacted?

MB. KNEEDIEF: Well, I think what they are are 

the most recent manifestation of the accepted rule that 

has governed in Indian law.

This Court in a number of decisions, United 

States v. Minnesota being perhaps the leading cne, tut 

alsc most recently in United States v. Nevada and 

others, has held that the United States, when suing cn 

behalf cf Indians, that the usual rule that statutes cf 

limitation and laches do not apply to such suits, apply 

when the United States sues cn behalf cf Indians. Sc it 

is clear that with respect to the United States bringing 

this suit that nc statute cf limitations or laches would 

apply .

QUESTION: But the United States didn't bring

this suit.

MB. KNEEDLER : But I think that the background 

that the United States is not tarred is important with 

respect to this because the United — when the United 

States is litigating in the area of Indian affairs, it 

is typically bringing a cause cf action with respect to 

property that it holds in trust for a beneficiary.

QUESTION: Is the United States litigating
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here?

SB. K NEED IER; The United States is not 

litigating here, but we do believe that the tribe has a 

right to bring its action, and in fact, one of the 

points I was making before, it is essential to carrying 

out the Secretary's trust responsibility tc enable 

tribes tc bring causes of action.

This one is quite old, but again, the 

principle applies to mere recent claims. It is 

essential that tribes and individuals be able to bring 

actions on their own behalf.

QUESTION; When were they first permitted to

do so?

MB. KNEEDIEF; It goes back quite a period of

time. Individual Indians --

QUESTION; Hew long? How long?

MB. KNEEEIEEs — have sued fer 15C years tc -- 

QUESTION; Tribes?

MR. KNEEElERi Tribes, it depends -- tribes it

typically depended on —

QUESTION; That's what we are asking about.

tribes .

MB. KNEEELER; Well, that's right, but for 

tribes, it typically depended on whether they were 

perceived as having the capacity to sue as a juristic
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person , much like a lahor union or some other 

association. There was no considered Congressional 

judgment that tribes were going to be litigating about 

issues that were inappropriate for judicial resolution., 

It was simply that tribes were not organized, they were 

not corporations, and therefore didn't have the capacity 

to sue in that sense. But it is quite clear that 

Congress intended to confer legal rights on tribes in 

the treaties and by conferring property rights on them, 

and the normal incidence of a property right is that a 

person can bring an action in ejectment.

QUESTION; Well, sometimes they think the 

guarding should be bringing the action.

SR. KNEEIIER ; Eut if one -- 

QUESTION; Provided there is a guardian.

NR. KNEEDLER; There is, but normally under 

accepted principles of trust law, if the trustee dees 

not bring an action on behalf of the beneficiary, the 

beneficiary can bring the action himself, and one of the 

problems with applying a shorter limitations period —

QUESTION; Well, is it also true that he can’t 

take the rights of the trustee, he can't exert those, 

can he?

NR. KNEEEIER; Net separately, but -- 

QUESTION: Isn't that what you are doing
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her €?

MR. KNEEDLER ; No, these are — the tribe has 

its own rights. These are --

QUESTION; What right does the tribe have to 

ignore the statute of limitations?

MR. KNEEDLER; It's not that the tribe is 

ignoring a statute that otherwise applies. Congress has 

not applied a statute --

QUESTION; But the U.S. could do it.

MR. KNEEDLER; The United States clearly would 

not be tarred by a statute of limitations except where 

Congress has made it applicable.

QUESTION; Sc by coming in here and making 

this argument, you are going to give them that right.

MR. KNEEE1ER; Yes, in effect, that’s right. 

QUESTION; How can you do that?

ME. KNEEDLER; Well, because Congress 

repeatedly has made the judgment, in our view, and I 

would like to, because it has specific relevance to this 

case, I would like to point cut that the legislative -- 

the text in the legislative history of Section 233 of 

Title 25, which was enacted in 1950 to give New York 

jurisdiction ever Indian affairs, and the Court 

discussed this provision in its 1974 opinion in this 

case, and Congress enacted a proviso to Section 233 that
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says nothing in this statute shall he construed as 

making applicable the laws cf the State of New York in 

civil actions involving Indian lands or claims with 

respect thereto which relate to transactions or events 

transpiring prior to 1952.

QUESTION^ Eut that's the same sort of 

provision that Justice Stevens quoted to your colleague, 

nothing in this provise. That doesn't say that Congress 

was saying it could not have happened; it just wasn't 

toi happen by virtue of that proviso.

ME. KNEEDIER: Well, what the legislative 

history shews of this, it shows that Congress understood 

what the' prevailing rule was, that statutes cf 

limitation did not apgly, and if I could just read the 

two sentences of the person who was explaining this 

provision, he says, as it is new, the Indians, as we 

know, are wards of the government and therefore the 

statute cf-limit at ions does not run against them as it 

does in the ordinary case. This will preserve their 

rights so that the statute will not be running against 

them concerning these claims that might have arisen 

before the passage of this act.

New, that is an expression of congressional 

intent which specifically applies to the very claim in 

this suit, a claim arising on the State of New York
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pricr to 1952

QUESTION; What were you reading from, Nr. 

Kneedler? What were you reading from?

MR. KNEEDLER; I'm — I weas — this is cn 

page 22 of my brief. It is from —

QUESTION ; I mean , what source?

MR. KNEEDLER; It is from the Congressional 

Record, Volume 96, page 12040.

QUESTION; Is it a Congressman or the 

Committee report or who? Who were you quoting?

MR. KNEEDLER; It is the remarks of 

Representative Morris.

QUESTION; Who was one cf the proponents of

the bill?

MR. KNEEDLER; Yes, and it was his remarks 

that the Court quoted from in the 1974 Oneida opinion.

In fact, this paragraph was between,the two, the twc 

portions of his remarks that the Court relied upon in 

Oneida, one in saying that the New York Indians should 

have a right to go into federal court.

If I could go back even further, and this also 

ties in to a question that Justice Rehrquist had in an 

earlier time about what would happen if the Gneidas went 

into state court, and in this regard, it is useful tc 

lock at the case of Seneca Nation v. Christy in 162 U.S.
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and the underlying state ccurt decisions.

The first aspect cf the case that is important 

for this point is the fact that it was a cause of action 

to invalidate a transaction under the Trade and 

Intercourse Act by an Indian tribe. It failed for ether 

reasons in state ccurt, but the New York Ccurt cf 

Appeals and the lower court never suggested that an 

Indian tribe didn't have a right to invoke the Trade and 

Intercourse Act.

What the court, the State Court dismissed the 

claim for failure to comply with the state statute cf 

limitations, and this Ccurt declined to review it cr the 

ground that there was no separate federal question 

involved, on the ground that the state had furnished the 

Indian tribe a special state statutory remedy, and that 

the tribe had tc comply with the procedures under that 

special remedy, which was the application of the state 

statute of limitations.

But even the New York Court cf Appeals was 

careful to point out the question is not whether an 

Indian title can be barred hy adverse possession cr hy 

state statutes of limitation; the point is that the 

Plaintiff cannot invoke the special remedy given by 

statute without being bound by the conditions upon which 

it is given.
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So this is a decision by the New York Court of 

Appeals itself in 1891 recognizing that to apply state 

law to wholly tar the claiir would be inappropriate, tut 

that stae law applied because the state had furnished a 

specia1 remedy.

So we have a continuing understanding that 

Indian, that statutes cf limitation do not apply tc 

claims brought ty Indians, and in fact, if one locks at 

the text of the Trade and Intercourse Acts from 179C 

onward, they, too, furnish a compelling indication that 

Congress would not have intended state statutes of 

limitation to apply.

They say that no transaction or title or claiir 

to Indian property shall be of any validity in law or 

equity, strongly suggesting that for a court to apply a 

statute cf limitations or laches where Congress had not 

specified would be inconsistent with the purpose of 

voiding such transactions.

In fact, where Congress has intended to apply 

s-tate statutes of limitation tc Indian claims, it has 

done so expressly; for example, in 25 U.S.C. 347, which 

deals with claims for allotments, Congress has expressly 

applied state statutes of limitation.

And finally, under this Court's analysis in 

DelCostello of last term, it seems quite clear that the
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appropriate aaalogy for the statute cf limitations in 

this area is to refer tc federal law, tc which the 

trustee would he bound.

I would like to make two ether points. Cne, 

we do believe the Congress can extinguish, Justice 

White, the title in this area simply by ratifying the 

transaction as it had the right tc dc in 1795.

And lastly --

QUESTION; Sc, I didn’t -- I wasn't raising a 

question about it. I was just raising a question cf 

whether it ever would.

ME. KNEEDLEB; Well, Congress has shewn a 

readiness tc extinguish these claims when the parties 

come into agreement, and if there was going to be 

widespread disarrangement in New lork State because cf 

these claims, I think that Congress could be expected tc 

act .

QUESTION; Could the Secretary ratify it?

MR. KNEEDLER; No. Under our reading,

Congress would have tc act.

With respect to the equitable claims in the 

case, we do not suggest at this point that laches would 

actually entirely bar the suit. Our analysis was 

directed at some considerations that should be taken 

into account in future claims against private
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landowners, particularly, and in fact, if applied in 

this case, we think there is sene chance that even the 

damage award that would be applied in this particular 

case would net be sustained.

One last point I would like to make, that in 

these cases, although Eetitioners tend to paint with a 

bread brush with respect to eastern land claims, in 

fact, the process of resolving them has turned out tc be 

fairly orderly. In many cases there is a specific basis 

on which the claim can be found to have been 

extinguished. In this case we have discussed in our 

brief the Treaty of Buffalo Creek and the subsequent 

litigation in New York Indians v. United States, which 

may provide a basis for finding that the claim was 

extinguished without resorting to statutes of 

limita ticn.

CHIEF JUSTICE BUBGEE 4 Thank you, counsel.

The case is submitted.

(Whereupon, at 2*33 o’clock p.m., the case in 

the abcve-entitled matter was submitted.)
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